
UNITED N A TIO N S;

G E N E R A  
A S S E M B L Y

7

D istr,
GEHERAL

A/COHP.95/SR.6 
18 September 1979

ENGLISH
O riginal FRENCH

TMITED NATIONS CONFERENCE ON PROHIBITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS 
OP USE OP CERTAIN CONV№TIONAL t/EAPONS Ш1СН MAY BE DEEMED 

TO BE EXCESSIlk¡LY INJURIOUS OR TO HAVE IbUDISCRIMINATE EFFECTS

SUMMARY RECORD OP THE SIXTH MEETING

held at the Pala is des Nations, Geneva, 
on Friday, I 4 September 1979, at 10. 30 a.m.

President; Mr, GHERAEHAN (In d ia ) 

la te r ; " Mr .  ADENIJI (N iger ia )

CONTENTS

Consideration o f proh ib itions or re s tr ic t ion s  o f use o f certain- conventional, 
weapons which may be deemed to be excessive ly  in jurious or to have indiscrim inate 
e ffe c ts  ( c o n t i n u e d •

This record is  subject to ’ correction .

Corrections should be submitted in  one o f the working languages. They should 
be set fo rth  in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy o f the record. They 
should be sent w ithin one week o f the date o f th is document to the Chief, O f f ic ia l  
Records Editing Section, Room E-6IO8 , Pa la is des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records o f the meetings o f the Conference w i l l  be 
consolidated in a s ingle corrigendum to be issxied shortly  a fte r  the end o f the 
Conference.



■ The meeting was called to order at 10.55 a.m..

CONSIDERATION OP - PROHIBITIONS OR RESTRÍCTIONS OP USE OP CERTAIN COIWELITIONAL lEAPONS 
m iO E  1Ш  IÈ DEEMEB TO BE EXCESSIVELY INJURIOUS OR TO.,Hil/E IH)ISCRIMINATE EPEE.C.TS . 
(agenda item 3) (continued) (i/COî/P.95/3 )

1. Mr, EL-SHAIEI (Egypt) said his country had always been in  favour o f  the
peaceful settlement o f disputes and disarmament and therefore hoped that the
Conference would achieve pos itive  resu lts . .The International Conference on Human 
Rights held at Teheran in  I 968 had been the f i r s t  to condemn napalm bombing and ha,d 
been the s ta rtin g  jjo in t fo r  study o f the law applicable in  armed c o n flic ts . The 
most important problem before the Conference wa,s that o f the use o f nagalm and other 
incendiary weapons. I t  was not enough to r e s tr ic t  the use o f such weapons against
the c iv i l ia n  population; th e ir  use against combatants should also be regulated in
keeping with the AdditionaJ Protocols to thé Geneva Conventions o f 1949» His 
delegation  wished to see a universaJ proh ib ition  o f th e ir  use, even i f  that gave 
r ise  to problems o f m ilita ry  ta c tic s . The argument that a ban on napalm would ha,ve 
the e f fe c t  o f promoting the use o f other equally le th a l weapons ’.*ras not convincing.
To accept thaJ a,rgument would be to deprive the le ga l instruments o f a l l  sign ificance 
and c r e d ib il ity .  I t  should be possible to. strike the r igh t bsJance between the 
humanitarian consideraJions already re ferred  to in  the St. Petersburg Declaration
o f 1868 and the Hague Conventions o f I 898 and 19Q7, on the one hand, and m ilita ry  
requirements, on the other, thereby fu lii l in g -  the mandate the Conference had 
received from the General Assembly.

2. The Egyptian delegation  had already stated at the Preparatory Conference that 
i t  wa.s in  favour o f  a to ta l ban on londmJnes and booby-tra^ps. I t  was, however, 
ready to co-operate with other delegaJions in  tightening the re s tr ic t ion s  on th e ir  
use. Egypt sim ilan ly supported the d ra ft proposaJ, submitted to the Prepa,ratory 
Conference, concerning weacpons which injured by fragments which in  the human body ‘ 
escaped detection  by X-rays, I t  also considered that the Conference should give
it s  a tten tion  to other caJegories o f weapons (smaJl ca libre p r o je c t i le s , ' fu e l-aJr 
exp losives, flechet-^es and anti-personnel fragmentation weapous). I t  was d i f f ic u l t  
to see why an agreement had not been concluded on smaJl caJibre weapons, since 
su ffic ien t data were avaJlable on the subject.

3 . The preliminany outline o f a general and u n iversa lly  applicable trea ty  with 
optional protocols or danses, submitted by the Mexican delegation , dnserved close 
attention . 1 period ic reviev; mechanism would enable studies to be ma,de o f the 
e ffe c ts  o f other weapons or new wea.pons and would ensure that the provis ions, 
adopted by the Conference v/ere e f fe c t iv e ly  implemented. As had been suggested by 
Ireland, non-governmenta.1 organizations d ir e c t ly  concerned with problems o f 
internaJional humanitarian law should partic ipate in  such work. ■



4. Mr... LB KIM GHHHG (V ie t  Nam) said he welcomed General Assembly reso lu tion  32/152 
convening the Conference. I t  was a praiseworthy e f fo r t  by the in ternational 
community, designed in  the f i r s t  place, to prevent im peria lis t, c o lo n ia lis t , 
ra c is t and in ternationa l reactionary forces  from subjugating peoples by the use
o f inhumane weapons. Since the end o f the Second World W.ar and, in  defiance o f 
the princip les o f the Charter o f the United Nations, im peria lis t wars o f aggression 
against peoples struggling fo r  th e ir  l ib e r ty  in  Asia, A fr ica  and Latin  America 
had m u ltip lied , as had the nimiber o f cruel, barbarous xroapons used against the 
c iv i l ia n  population and the armies o f peoples xvho could only counter such attacks 
by a peop le 's  war. V iet Nam, Laos and Kampuchea had long experienced such . 
traged ies, which others were continuing to endure, notably in  southern A fr ica  
and the Middle Bast. The Vietnamese people had p a rticu la r ly  sxoffered from txvo 
co lon ia l and neo-colon ia l xvars in  vdaich women, ch ildren, old people and young 
people had been massacred or m utilated. Cruel and inhumane weapons had again 
been used against i t  during txvo ware o f aggression recen tly  launched by reactionary 
and hegemonic c ir c le s  on the countiy 's south-western and northern fro n t ie rs .
I t  xvas thus in  the fu l l  knoxvledge o f the fa c ts  that the Vietnamese, delegation 
condemned the indiscrimina.te use o f inhimiane weapons and wished to malte an 
active  contribution to the XfTork o f the Conference.

5 . The Preparatory Conference had helped to reconcile  d iffe ren t points o f  view 
'and to  id en t ify  areas o f  agreement on substantive fxnd procedural problems. I t  
would be wise to take decisions by consensus and to draw up the agreements in  the 
form o f an in ternational trea ty  comprising general provisions and optional clauses 
or protocols on certa in  weapons. A wide measxrre o f agreement seemed to have been 
reached on the p roh ib ition  o f xveapons causing injxiry by fragments which in  the 
human body escaped detection  by X-rays and progress had been made on regu lating the 
use o f  landmines and other devices, as v/ell as on incendiary xíeapons. Those 
delegations vihich had contributed to such progress were to be congratulated.

6. While supporting re s tr ic t io n s  or proh ib itions o f use o f certa in  conventional.; 
weapons, the Vietnamese delegation coxild not agree to  such action  saving as a 
pretext fo r  lim itin g  the capacity o f oppressed peoples to  defend themselves against 
th e ir  aggressors. In  order to survive and conquer such peoples could resort 
on ly to a people’ s war and to the corresponding prim itive vreapons. S p ec ific a lly , 
non-detectable fragmentation weapons, napalm, c lu ster and fle ch e tte  bombs, 
remotely delivered  mines d irected against c iv i l ia n  ob jectives  and inhabited
areas shoxfLd be prohibited., and. occupying armies should he required to  remove . 
or neutra lize any m inefields and booby-traps they had placed d-uring c o n f l ic t .
The Vietnamese delegation  hoped that, thanks to  the readiness to  compromise 
shoxm at the Preparatory Conference, i t  would be possib le to conclude genera lly  
acceptable agreements and i t  intended to malee a modest contribution tov/ards.that, 
ob jec tive .

7 . The success o f the Conference vrould have a th ree fo ld  s ign ificance: by 
malcing the laws governing wax more humane, i t  xvould constitute a new development 
in  in ternational humanitarian lax/ applicable in  armed c o n flic ts ; by lim itin g  
destructive and inhximane action by armies o f aggression and invasion, i t  would 
promote the cause o f x/eak peoples struggling against various forms o f aggression; 
and f in a l ly ,  by proh ib iting or re s tr ic t in g  the use o f certa in  weapons, i t  xrould 
represent a step tox/ards disarmament and in ternational peace and security .



8. There xras therefore cause fo r  concern at the statement made txvo days before 
by the delegation  o f a country which had expressed i t s  sjmipakhy fo r  the su fferings 
o f peoples in  Asia, A fr ica  and Lokin America who were victim s o f wars o f 
im peria lis t agrression, but which had violaked the Geneva, Conventions o f 1949 And 
Additional Protocol I  during i t s  recent war o f aggression on V ie t Nam's northern 
fron tie rs  by massacring c iv i l ia n  populations and by using a l l  tjrpes o f  weapon. :
The same aggressor was now jiï’sparing to  launch another war in  collusion with i t s  
new' im peria lis t ak lies and was threatening the t e r r i t o r ia l  in te g r ity  o f the ■
Lao Peop le 's  Democratic Piepublic and the Peop le 's  Republic o f Kampuchea., By 
mailing massive purchases o f weapons and preparing fo r  гтаг, those expansionist . .
and hegemonic c irc le s  were accelera ting the arms race and threatening peace and 
security  in  the world. I t  was a very rea l danger fo r  the Conference, fo r  whose 
ob jectives  so many people o f goodw ill had long been s tr iv in g .

9. Иг. de ICAZA (Mexico) said that Mexico, which was a deeply p a c if is t  country, 
was anxious to strengthen the le ga l ru les and in ternational mechanisms foi* the. peace
fu l settlement o f disputes w ith in  the framework o f an in ternational order based on 
ju s tice . Il/hile the problem o f nuclea.r weapons mainly concerned 'those m ilita ry  
Powers possessing such vrea.pons, conventional wea.pons were prim arily  o f in teres t to  
developing countries, since those countries were the f i r s t  to su ffe r  th e ir  e f fe c ts .
I t  v/as to diminish the su fferings o f the c iv i l ia n  population in  conventional armed 
con flic ts  that Mexico had taken an axtive part in  the Diplomatic Conference on the 
Reaffirm3.tion and Development o f  In ternational Huraanitarian Law Applicable in
Armed C on flic ts , to which i t  had submitted sp ec ific  proposals that had 
unfortunately not been adopted because o f a la.ck o f p o l i t ic a l  w i l l .  At the 
in s tiga tion  o f the Mexican and other delegakions, the General /Issembly had therefore 
convened, the Conference in  ox'der to reach agreements on certa in  conventional 
weapons and to adopt a system o f period ic review. Por that purpose, an 
ianportant le g a l basis was availo.ble in  the form o f the declarations, agreements 
and resolu tions proclaimed or e.dopted over more than a oentury; there was 
also a wealth o f technical information contained in  reports by the 
Secretary-General o f the United Ifetions and expert groups. However, i t  had 
not yet .proved possible to la,y down c r ite r ia  fo r  determining whether v/eapons 
were excessive ly  in jurious or had indiscrim inate e ffe c ts .

10. The f i r s t  need was fo r  a. to ta l ba.n on the use o f incendiary weapons 
in  armed co n flic ts , as had been so pa in fu lly  demonstrated, in  the case o f  a 
c iv i l ia n  population situated in  the same geograpMcal area as Mexico, I t  
was inadmissible fo r  such weapons to constitute a strateg/ic secu rity  fa c to r 
fo r  the major Powers, xvhich had many other more destructive nieans o f defence.
On the other hand, some developing countries und.eniably needed such weapons 
fo r  th e ir  defence. Mexico was therefo i’e prepared to  make a. concession on 
regu lation  o f the use o f incendiary weapons.



11. The proposal concerning the use o f  landmines and hoobytraps did not need extensive 
aEBndment, although i t  had tvjo drawbacks. In  the f i r s t  place, the document was too 
comprehensive and deta iled  and would be d i f f i c u l t  to implement; and in  the second 
place, i t  s t i l l  contained spme ambiguities which might lead to uses already prohibited 
by the law applicable in  armed c o n flic ts . '

12. There were apparently s t i l l  in su ffic ien t technical data to enable indisputable . 
conclusions to be reached regarding small ca lib re weapons and ammunition, fragmentation 
weapons and exp losives, on which Mexico had submitted proposals. I t  was a f i e ld  in  
which an e f fe c t iv e  review mechanism was esp ec ia lly  needed. The wide support shown
at the expert conference at Lugano in  I 966 fo r  the proposal submitted by Switzerland 
and Mexico on weapons which injured by fragments which in the human body escaped 
detection by X-rays showed that progress could be made in  that area without 
neglecting the search fo r  agreement on other categories o f  weapons. The concept o f 
a general trea ty  put forward by Mexico had also met with a favourable reception at 
the Preparatory Conference. While i t  was, in  fa c t , more r e a l is t ic  to ask countries 
to apply "self-im posed lim its "  in  the f i e ld  o f  conventional weapons instead o f hoping 
to conclude in ternational agreements, such self-imposed lim its  should nevertheless be 
in tern a tion a lly  recognized and protected. That was p rec ise ly  the function o f  the 
proposed general trea ty , . .

1 3 . The work o f the Conference should not be; continued within the framework o f 
disarmament, but by an independent review system, as requested by the General Assembly. 
Negotiations on disarmament were.o f cap ita l importance and i f  they were extended to 
include the problem o f protecting victim s and the c iv i l ia n  population during armed 
con flic ts ,' there was a r isk  o f th e ir  conclusion being postponed in d e fin ite ly .
F in a lly , the Mexican delegation hoped that the decisions o f the Conference would be 
taken by consensus, as had been done at the Preparatory Conference.

14 » Mr. GEBKOV (Byelorussian Soviet S o c ia lis t  Republic) said that, in  keeping with 
the peaceful p o lic ie s  o f the Soviet Union, liis  country had supported the 
General Assembly resolu tion  convening the Conference. The ob jective  was to adopt 
measures enabling equitable and balanced progress to be made towards disarmament, so 
that each country's r igh t to security was safeguarded and no country could arrogate 
any p r iv ile g e s  to i t s e l f .  He had been surprised at the biased in terp reta tion  wliich 
one delegation  had placed on the disarmament p o licy  o f certain  countries which, 
according to i t ,  advocated disarmament but only fo r  other countries. The country 
represented by that delegation pursued an e v i l  po licy , as demonstrated by the endless 
s u ffe r in g .it  had recen tly  in f l ic te d  on the c i v i l i a i  population o f V ie t NaBi. ■

1 5 . The Conference was talcing plane at a c r i t ic a l  juncture, fo r  the opponents o f 
detente were attempting to counteract the e f fo r ts  to promote disarmament being made 
by the USSR and other s o c ia lis t  countries. They had not, however, been able to' 
prevent the Soviet Union and the United States o f America from recen tly  signing the 
Vienna agreement on the lim ita tion  o f s tra teg ic  xijeapons, which could not but have 
b en e fic ia l e f fe c ts  on the resu lts o f the Conference. The Preparatory Conference had 
made i t  possible to narrow down d ifferences o f view and to formulate sp ec ific  proposals. 
The present task was to reach generally acceptable decisions as quickly as possib le.



1 6 . The most important and urgent need was fo r  agreement on the proh ib ition  o f 
weapons the primary e f fe c t  o f  which was to injure by fragments which escaped detection 
by X-rays, and on the regu lation  o f the use o f landmines and other devices, since 
those questions were no longer the subject o f controversy. Unfortunately, the same 
could not be said o f the problem o f  incendiary weapons. I t  would undoubtedly be 
more in  keeping with humanitarian law to impose an outright ban on the use o f 
napalm; but in  view o f  the attitude o f certa in  countries, i t  would a.ppear more 
r e a l is t ic  to seek an agreement a fford ing the maximum protection  to c iv i l ia n  
populations. His delegation welcomed the idea o f  an "ujubrella trea ty " comprising 
general provisions followed by optional protocols, put forward by Mexico and then 
taken up by the United Kingdom and the Netherlands,

17» I t  would appear d i f f ic u l t  to reach agreement on certain  weapons; he therefore 
considered that the- study o f such weapons should be re ferred  to the Committee on 
Disarmament, an in ternational body that was fam ilia r  with a l l  disarmament questions. 
Since that Committee did not have to deal with procedural qtiestions, i t  could 
concentrate on the substance o f problems; the fin an c ia l im plications o f such an 
arrangement would also be considerably less .

18. Mr. MHAJLOVIC (Yugoslavia) said i t  was necessaxy to draw up a trea ty  r e fle c t in g  
a l l  that had so fa r  been done to humanize the practice o f war. The ob jective  o f
the Conference was not disarmament; i t ’ was concerned, fo r  humanitarian reasons, with 
the i-es tric tion  or proh ib ition  o f the use against c iv i l ia n  populations and, to some 
extent, against m ilita ry  personnel o f  certa in  conventional weapons which had been . 
employed ind iscrim inately  on many b a t t le f ie ld s ,  causing indescribable su ffering to 
both combatants and c iv il ia n s . Yugoslavia was” prepared to accept any proh ib ition  
or re s tr ic t io n  o f the use o f any weapons, including conventional ones, provided that 
such proh ib ition  or re s tr ic t io n  was universal in  character. One o f the d i f f ic u lt ie s  
encountered, in  addktion to the reluctance o f  certa in  m ilita ry  Powers to relinqu ish  
some o f th e ir  options in  the weapons f ie ld ,  was the fa c t that fo r  many small countries 
renunciation o f  any o f  the weapons in  question might jeopardize th e ir  national 
security since, unlike the r icher countries, they would be unable to replace them by 
others. I t  was therefore o f the utmost importance that the texts o f  decisions 
should be drafted in  unambiguous terns. His delegation  also believed  that a l l  the 
decisions to be taken should be based on the p rincip le  o f rec ip roc ity  and respect 
the requirements o f national security.

1 9 . ¥ ith  regard to incendiary weapons, attention  must be concentrated on ensuring 
maximum protection  fo r  c iv i l ia n  populations and, so fa r  as possib le, fo r  m ilita ry  
personnel. The d ra ft texts submitted gave reason to hope that the Conference would 
not merely restate in  d iffe ren t terras the provisions o f  a r t ic le  51 o f
Additional Protocol I .  Substantial progress had been made on the subject o f 
landmines and other devices, although some d ifferences remained, in  particu lar with 
regard to points v/hich tended to fa.vour the m ilita ry  Powers. Waexe small ca libre 
v/eapons were concerned, i t  had to be borne in  mind that small ca lib re p ro je c t ile s  
had the same e ffe c ts  as dumdum bu lle ts , the use o f which had been prohibited by 
-The Hague Conference o f 1899-



20. Lastly, M s delegation attached great importance to the establishment o f a 
reviexf meciianisni and considered thak a United. Nations conference was the appropriate 
forum fo r  the necess9.iy studies and reviews. .

21. I'If. ABMALIE (Pa lestine Liberation Organization ), speaking on behalf o f the 
peoples x/ho xrere s t i l l  su ffe r in g  xmder the yoke o f colonialism , racism and fore ign  
occupation and struggling to exercise th e ir  night to self--determ:inekion, expressed 
indignation at- th e .systomakic and blatant flou tin g  o f human righ ts and the precepts 
o f in ternational humanitarian lax-j by some Poxrers. The 1974 Diplomatic Conference 
haxl led to progress in respect o f in ternational humanita.rian lax/, in particu lar, hy 
enabling the national lib era tion  rnox/ements to ancede to the additional protocols to 
the 1949 Geneva Conventions, and he urged the in ternational community to make fu rther 
progress akong thak path, since the question o f the protection o f c iv i l ia n  populakions 
remained an urgent one. Indeed, fo r  over ten months, the c iv i l ia n  populakion o f 
southern Lebanon, both Palestin ian  and Lebanese, had been subjected to intensive 
bombing, and thak mansacre did not seem to cause any undue concern to. a number o f ■ 
countries xvhich clakmed to be champions o f human righ ts . I t  x/a,s true thak the 
te r r i fy in g  x/eapons used by the Z ion ists, x/hich caxised in to lerah le su fferin g  and sox/ed 
te rro r  and panic, had been supplied by the United States o f America, subject, o f course¡ 
to the condition that they x/ould not be used against c iv i l ia n  populations.

22. I t  x/as imperative, therefore, that the Conference should achieve concrete resu lts 
and proh ib it a l l  categories o f x/eapons deemed to. be excessive ly  injurious or to
have indiscrim inate e ffe c ts . The procedure proposed by some partic ipants, x/hereby 
the Conference xrould concentrate on the less controversia l matters and postpone 
action on other questions in d e fin ite ly , in no x/ay met the x/ishes o f mankind; the 
oppressed peoples expecterl prompt and e f fe c i iv e  decisions. In any event, the, 
Palestin ian  people xrould continue th e ir  struggle fo r  freedom and independence.

Mr. A den iji (N ig e r ia ) took the Chair .

23. Mr. OGISO (Japan) sakd he agreed x/ith many participants on the need to concentrate 
on the questions x/hich the Preparatory Conference had shox-ai x/ere ripe fo r  a.greement ; 
landmines and other devices, incendiary x/eanons and fragments not detectable by 
X-rays, Agreement, seemed m lik e ly ,  fo r  the time being, on the other conventional 
x/eapons x/hich had been discussed, and they x/ould require fuikher study in other ' 
bodies. . ;

24 . I t  would be m irea lis tic  to seek an 8.greera.ent on the to ta l proh ib ition  o f 
incendiary x/eapons. The prima.ry purpose x/as to protect; the c iv i l ia n  populakions.
I t  might also he possible to proh ib it attacks by r.ia.palm or any other incendia.ry 
х/еат)оп on m ilita ry  ob jectives situated x/ithin a. concentration o.f c iv ilia n s , unless 
those ob jectives x/ere clean ly separaked from the c iv i l ia n  populations.

25. His delegation supported, in p rin c ip le , certain  res tr ic tion s  on the use o f 
landmines and the proh ib ition  o f the use o f certakn hooby-traps, provided that 
they were c le a r ly  defined.



л /с  ONP. 9 5 /s r . 6
оpage о

26. His delegation endorsed the proposals concerning the recording o f the location 
o f pre-planned m inefields la id  by the parties to a c o n flic t  and the provision that 
the parties  should endeavour to ensure the recordfng o f the location  o f a l l  other 
m inefields, mines and booby-traps. Tlie location  o f the recorded m inefields, mines, 
and booby-tra,ps remaining in te r r ito r y  controlled  by an adverse party should be made 
public a fte r  the cessation o f active h o s t i l i t ie s .  Furthermore, in view o f the 
ambiguity o f the expression " te r r ito r y  controlled  by an adverse party", his delegation 
requested that i t  should be made c lea r, in an "umbrella trea ty " or elsewhere, that 
nothing in the measures ado'pted ju s t i f ie d  or authorized any ant o f aggression or
use o f fo rce  which was inconsistent with the provisions o f the Charter o f the 
United Nations.

2 7 . Mr. PAZOS (Cu.ba) said thaJ the discussions xfhich had taken place between the 
Soviet Union and the United States created favourable conditions fo r  achieving 
steady progi-ess towards disarmament viith a view to avoiding a ne\r vrorld war. I f ,  
ho\/ever, the ob jectives o f the Conference were to be achieved, the major m ilita ry  
Powers must not be l e f t  with absolute resp on s ib ility  fo r  disarmaments on the 
contrary, aJl countries should partic ipa te  in that e f fo r t ,  in particu lar, the 
developing countries vrhich, paradoxicaJly, ha,d been the ma,in victim s o f the use o f 
conventional wea,pons. At the sixth  Conference o f non-aligned countries, held at 
Havana, Mr. F idel Castro had stressed that a nuclear world, wax' was not in ev itab le  
and that never before had such teclm iological p o s s ib il it ie s  been ava ilab le  to mankind. 
Peace must not be the exclusive resp on s ib ility  o f the great m ilita ry  Powers and a l l  
countries must a.ppreciate the need to f ig h t fo r  i t .  Mr. F idel Castro had expressed 
hopes fo r  peane fo r  V iet Nam, the Palestin ians, the pa tr io ts  o f Zimbabwe and Namibia, 
the oppressed m ajorities in South A fr ica , Angola, Zambia., Mozambique, Botswana,
Ethiopia, Syria and Lebanon, and the Sahraoui people. Peace, detente, peaceful 
coexistence and d.isarmamaent were neceesaxy in order to save mankind. He had 
therefore welcomed the SALT I I  agreements between the Soviet Union and the United States. 
He had expressed the hope that the peoples would never x-elinquish the struggle fo r  
unity and brotherhood and had ca lled , in. particu lar, on the in ternational 
organizations to pass from words to deeds in ordex- to ensui-e the success o f that 
struggle.

28. His d.elegation shax-ed the general view on the pi'-oposal ccncerning the 
proh ib ition  o f fragments not detectable by X-rays and also welcomed the proposals 
concerning landmines and napa.lm. With regard to other questions, such as small 
ca lib re  weapons, fragmentation weapons, fle ch e ttes  and fu .e l-a ir exp losives, i t  
considered, lilce many others, that discussions should be continued.. The "umbrella 
trea ty " proposed by Mexico constituted a possible sta.rting point fo r  futux-'e 
in ternational treaJies.

29. A.fter deploring the su ffering which the use o f certain  conventional weapons 
had recen tly  in f l ic te d  on the Nicaraguan people sti-uggl-ing fox- th e ir  freedom, he 
welcomed the x-epresentation at the Conference o f the hei-oic Vietnamese people 
who had suffered so much from the use o f co.nventional vreapons having excessively 
injurious or ind.isciMminate e ffe c ts  and whose coui'’age had helped to safeguard, peace 
and ensure the survival o f many other peoples.



a / g оир. 95/ s r .
page 9

5 0 . Mr. BAYMT (Mongolia), said that his delegation, like- that o f the-other - 
s o c ia lis t  coxuitries, had a specia l in te res t in disanuaiaent, an essen tia l condition 
fo r  in ternational peace and security . The s o c ia lis t  countries ardently desired 
a ha lt to the nuclear and conventional arns race, the lim ita tion  o f such anis 
and the destruction o f stocks. To that end, they had taken several constructive 
steps both on' the occasion o f the specia l session o f the General Assembly on 
disarniajTient and at the'meeting, o f the member countries o f the Warsaw Pact, held 

■■-aJt Budapest. Furthermore, as fa x  back as the ea rly  1970s, the Soviet Union had . 
proposed' the holding o f an in ternational conference oh disarnaaent. .

3 1 . Follow ing the in tensive and useful work o f the Preparatory Conference, 
agreement could be reached on the proh ib ition  o f certain types o f conventional 
x/eapons. " Indeed, the m ajority o f pe.rticipants had expressed support'for the' 
proh ib ition  o f weapons the primary e f fe c t  o f x/hich x/as to x/ound by■ fragiients -
which, in the' h-uman body, escaped detection by X-rays, and the regu lation o f the 
use- o f landi'-iines and other devices x/as generakly accepted. His delegation, fo r  
i t s  part, x?as in favoui" o f the complete proh ib ition  o f napalm and other types o f 
incendiary x/eapons x/hioh ca.used immense su fferin g  such as that in f l ic t e d  on the ■ 
Vietnamese people. , , .

3 2 . The propose.! to draw up' an "umbrella trea-ty", supplemented by optional ' . 
protocols the provisions o f x/hi oh would be binding, x/as useful as a step tox/ards . 
disarmament and' the development o f in ternational h-umanitarian law. In that regard, 
i t  was--essentio.l that an ' in ternational o.greenent, pa.rticulo.rly in  the f i e ld  o f , 
disarnar.ient, which a,ffected the security o f every State, should be appl.ied 
e f fe c t iv e ly  and u n iversa lly . A l l  States, in particu lar, the great m ilita ry  Powers, 
should 'therefore be parties to such an agreement.

33« His delegation considered that a l l  decisions o f the Conference should be
taken by consensus, .

34*' Mr. WOLFE (Canada) said that x/hile there had been only one Preparatory 
Conference, x '̂hich had held/two sessions, States haul in fa c t been preparing fo r  
the current Conference fo r  s ix  years ; i t  x/as therefore to be hoped that i t  -would 
be successful, since some success was v ita l  i f  the nonentui'.i gained-was not to be 
lo s t .  Progress in  respect o f incendiary weapons and nines would be o f great value;
Canada had lo s t  several members o f i t s  pea.ce-keeping forces as a. resu lt o f the
explosion o f forgotten  nines. The Conference could a.lso take useful'; acti'o'n'w'ith 
regard to fragments not detectable by X-ra,ys; the representative o f the 
Soviet Union had sa.id that such weapon's might be developed shortly , .

35» The Canadian delegation atta..Ghed great importance to a. review mechaniisa and 
xjould support any rea.sonable proposal that x/ould .ensure the proper functioning 
o f such a mechanism at the internakional le v e l.  The "'umbrella trea ty " was, a 
useful device and the Mexican delegation'was to be commended .for i t s  work. The - 
prospect o f optional protocols x/as, howevei', less  sa.tisfactoryi , i t .  was unkortunate. 
that those protocols night be presented in such a x/ay that a. State -oould accept one



A/COHF.95/SR.6 
page 10

and re je c t  the others. I f  the protocols were to he optional, i t  would he necessary 
to require States to opt out o f being bound by them instead o f i t s  being-.assimed 
that they xjere not hound unless they nade a declaration to the contrary. ■

36 . Lastly , his delegation could agree to soue unsolved problems being re ferred  
to the Comiittee on Lisamnaisent, but only on three conditions; that such action 
did not g ive the impression tha,t the problem was being buried; that the additional 
work did not prejudice the important work already before the Comiittee; and that 
such re fe r ra l was not to the detriment o f any other review mechanism on which the 
Conference might agree.

37» Mr. RUZEK (Czechoslovakia) noted x/ith saotisfaction that the conditions created 
by the signature o f the SALT I I  Agreement hetx/een the Soviet Union and the 
United Stakes o f America had helped to create a favourahle climate fo r  the Conference. 
The x/ork o f the Prepara.tory Conference had enabled some progress to be made. The 
d ra ft proposal on x/eapons causing in ju ries  hy non-detectahle fragments appeared 
to have x/ide support and was acceptable to the Czechoslovak delegation; with some 
fu rther x/ork, the proposal fo r  regu lating the use o f la.ndmines and other devices 
could lead to a generally acceptable solution. The most d i f f ic u l t  problem was 
c lea r ly  that o f incendia,ry x/ea.pons. The Czechoslovak delegation would lik e  to see 
a complete ba.n on the use o f napalm, but the Conference appeared to be fa r  from 
agreement on such a ban; i t  should therefore try  to reach agreement on the broadest 
possible protection  o f the c iv i l ia n  population x/hile keeping open the p o s s ib il ity  
o f reaching agreement at a favourable time on the question o f the use o f incendiary 
weapons against combatants. The points just raised hy the delegations o f V ie t Nam 
and o f the Palestine Liherakion Organiza.tion showed the importance o f the problem,

3 8 , The Conference should also consider how i t s  e ffo r ts  should be continued. That 
question was dealt with in the Mexican proposal (A/COI'IP . 93/3, annex I,H ) and in the 
proposal o f the United Kingdom and the'Netherlands (a/COHF. 95^0 .1/1 .1 ), In his 
delegakion's view, however, the x/ork o f the Conference should be continued in the 
Coimriittee on Disannament. Czechoslovakia, x/hich had alx/a.ys attached importance to 
progress in disarmament, intended in that s p ir it  to submit to the General Assembly 
a t i t s  th irty -fou rth  session a d ra ft declaration on in ternational co-operation fo r  
achieving the ob jectives o f disarmament.

39* Mr. С-11СШ13Т (Jamaica) said that general and complete disarmament was an 
essen tia l ob jec tive . The outlay on convontiona,! x/eapons accounted fo r  80 per cent 
o f m ilita ry  expenditure, and the refinement o f such x/eapons x/as making them 
increasingly destructive. Ja,naica had taken a,n active part in both sessions o f 
the Preparatory Conference and had been a sponsor o f two d/raft proposals, one on 
non-detecta.ble fragments and the other on incendiary x/eapons. On the la t t e r  
subject, Ja/aaica had supported Mexico’ s proposal that the exceptions provided fo r  
in subparagraph (b ) o f the relevant d ra ft proposaJ. (A/CONF.95/3 , annex I ,  A) 
shoxfLd he abolished; i t  considered that, fo r  li'xatianitaria.n reasons, the r igh t to 
use mxuxitions ha.ving fragmentation and penetration e ffe c ts  combined with secondary 
incendiaiy e ffe c ts  should be elim inated. His delegation hoped that both the d ra ft 
proposals in question x?ould. be adopted by the Conference; i t  welcomed the fa c t



that the proposal on non-detectable fragments had cotrianded wide support, М-зге 
extensive negotiations would bo required on incendiary weapons; i t  x̂ as to be 
hoped that such negotiations would lead to a broad and unarfoiguous agreement, 
which should provide fo r  the to te l p rotection  o f the c iv i l ia n  population and 
exclude the use o f incendiary weapons against m ilita ry  ob jectives in areas- ' -
containing civilians-. Adequate protection  should also be given to m ilita ry  
personnel. The d e fin it ion  o f incendiary x î̂eapons should be as broad a.s possib le, ■ 
to cover new and sophisticated incendiary x-jeapons, and the proh ib ition  should be 
ca re fu lly  formulated to ensure that i t  x-jas comprehensive. '

4 0 . The work already done by the Preparatory Conference gax̂ ê reason to hope that 
an agreement on nines and booby-traps, based on the propose.! in annex I I ,
appendix В, o f i t s  report, would shortly  be adopted. In pe.rticular, the-del-ive-ry ' .
o f rem otely-delivered nines should not be permitted at a re.nge o f over 1,000 metres.

4 1 . His delegation also hoped that the Conference would fin d  solutions to such 
questions as small са.11Ъге weapons, fragaentation weapons, flech e ttes  and fu e l-a ir  
езф1оз1¥е8| the use o f small ca,libre xíeapons, ’ in  particu lar, and investments in 
th e ir  development were increasing. His delegation supported the Sxvedish Government's 
proposals on such weapons a.nd considered, that an agreefíent reached at the Conference 
on small ca lib re p ro je c t ile s  x-jould be o f great importance,

4 2 . A fte r  emphasizing the value o f an e f fe c t iv e  review mechanism to undertake a . 
continuing evaluation o f conventional x-ieapons at the in ternational le v e l ,  he said 
that his delegation was gra te fu l to the Mexican delegation fo r  having submitted a 
d ra ft treaty  se ttin g  out the general lega l princip les and providing fo r  such a 
reviex^; mechanism,

43» R eferring to certa in  general disarncxient questions o f concern to his country, 
he said that present world m ilita ry  ex].3enditure, which aiaomated to $440 b i l l io n  
a yea.r, was a threat not only to in ternational security  but also to the 
in ternational economy. The to ta l amount o f aid to developing countries - 
approxims.tely $20 b i l l io n  a year -  was derisory by comparison. From - that viewpointj 
disarmament was essen tia l fo r  the esta,blishnent o f the new in ternational economic 
order. Jamaica' therefore a,waited x-jith in te res t the conclusions o f the Group of 
Ex]3erts recen tly  set up by the Secretary-General o f the United Nations to study 
the rea lloca tion  to economic a.nd socia l development, pa rticu la rly  o f the developing 
countries, o f the resources now’ being used fo r  m ilita ry  purposes. I t  consid.ered in  
particu lar that, in  order to refu te p reva ilin g  views about the economic benefits 
o f the armaments industry, fu rther study o f the p o s s ib il it ie s  o f persuading the 
armaments incl.ustries to sxvitch to other products should be encouraged. I t  was also 
important to ha lt aixos exports to countries pursuing p o lic ie s  o f oppression, 
colonÍ3.1 domination, ra c ia l discrim ination, apartheid e.nd te r r i t o r ia l  expansion 
and, in that connexion, he drew the attention  o f the Conference to the Security . 
Council resolutions on- sanctions against South /ifrica. .

44* The PRESIBENT said that he x-joul-d give the f lo o r  to the representative o f 
Democratic Kampuchea.



45* îîr. PAZOS (Cuba), speal-cing on a point o f order, sakd that he x/as opposed to any 
stakements- being made by that representative, xrho represented, no one but himself and 
whose presence x/as a reminder o f  the genocide o f  tlrree m illion  people. To allox; him 
to  speali xrould be contrarj/ to the ob jectives ox the Conference.

46. Mr. LIAl'IG Y PAIT (China), spealcing on a point o f order, said that Democratic 
Kampuchea x/as a sovereign and independent.State Member o f the United Nations and 
that, as had been affirmed on numerous occasions in  General Assembly decisions, the 
Government o f Democratic Ka.mpuchea v.̂ as i t s  sole leg itim ate  Govemiment. The Cuban 
deleg-ation's ob jection  x/as therefore incompatible x/ith the General Assernblj/'s 
decision to convene the Conference, x/ith the s p ir it  o f the Charter o f the 
United Nations and x/itli United Nations prs.ctice,

47* Mr. THUN (Gerraan Democratic Republic), speaking on a point o f order, said that 
the only Government en tit led  to represent Kampuchea at the Conference xras- the 
Revolutiona.ry Council o f the People 's Republic o f Kampuchea. He therefore requested 
the President to  reconsider his decision. ■

48. Mr. LE lŒü CHONG (V iet Nam), speaking’ on a point o f order, said that he x/ished to 
protest against the presence at the Conference o f a delegation x/hicli claimed to  ■ 
represent the Government o f so-ca lled  Democratic Kampuchea. That criminal regime 
had been overthrox/n by the people o f Kampuchea, on 7 Januarj/ 1979 and the peop le 's  
revolutionary court o f Kampuchea had condemned the regim e's members to  death fo r  
genocide against th e ir  people. The Peop le 's  Revolutionary Coxmcil o f the Republic . 
o f Kampuchea x/as the only aukhentic and lega l representative o f the Kampuchean 
people. His delegation  .э.ссогйгп/х1у requested the President to  reconsider his 
decision . ■ ■

49* The PRESIDENT, drax/ing' attention  to ru le 5 o f the rules o f procedure o f the 
Conference, said that, since the Conference had taken no decision on the credentials 
o f the representative of Democratic Kamptichea, tha,t representative had the I’ ight to 
partic ipa te  pi’o v is ion a lly  in  the Conference.

50 . Mr. TE SUN HOA (Democratic Kampuchea) said that he x/ishcd to c la r i fy  the 
situation  a fte r  the regrettab le  incident that- had just taken place in  the 
Conference. Democratic Kampuchea x/as a fu l l  Member o f the United Nations, and as 
such sent deleg’ations to a l l  in ternational conferences x/ithout requesting the 
opinion or authorization o f the Ha.noi ag’gTessors or o f th e ir  m3.sters and 3.ccomplices, 
v/lio had been condemned fo r  trampling the Charter o f the United Nations under fo o t .
The incident had an exc lu s ive ly  criminal purposes that o f the pure and simple 
le ga liza t io n  o f the odious aggression launched ag’ainst Kampuchea,

5 1 . The delegation  of Democratic Ea.mpuchea x/elcomed the fa c t that the Conference 
x/as being held, at a time x/hen the use o f conventional x/eapons x/as a serious pi-oblem 
in  a numiber o f areas o f the.world, causing untold su ffering, the resp on s ib ility  fo r  
x/hich la y  x/ith the in stiga tors  o f co lon ia lis t and rac is t x/ars and o f x-/ars o f 
aggression and expansion. His deleg’ation x/ished to drax/ pa.rticular atten tion  to 
the use o f such x/eapons in  the x/ar o f aggression laxmciied against Kampuchea in



Á/COiTP. 95/SR. б 
pago 13

defiance o f tine Charter o f the United Nations and o f in ternational conventions and 
tre a t ie s . In eight months, 200,000 so ld iers  o f the Hanoi agíTessors had alreaxly 
massacred 300,000 c iv ilia n s  in  Democratic Kampuchea, using tox ic  chemicals I'/hich 
struck indiscrim inatelj^ and x-.liicn had ex̂ en been sprs.yed from a .ircra ft. Such a xrar 
endangered the реасе, stab ilitj'- and security o f South-East Asia, o f Asia as a xUiole 
and of the x/orld. Peace could only be restored tlorough the immediate, to ta l and 
unconditional xiithdranal from. Kampuchea o f the troops o f aggression and occupation. 
The Ea,mpuchean people хгето resolved, with the support o f a l l  peane-loving and 
.ju stice-loving i^eoples, to continue th e ir  struggle a.gainst the invsxlers and to defend 
th e ir  r igh t to  l i v e  in independence and sovereigntj?-,

52, Hr. LIANG Y PM  (China), speaking’ in  exercise o f the r ig ’ht o f rep ly , said that 
he xxishod to re fu te  the slanderous insinuations made ag’ainst China, by the delegation 
o f a certain country. I t  x-;as the regional hegemonic ambitions o f that country, 
supported by a super-Power, tha.t were a.t the orig ’in  o f the armed con flic t  against 
China along th e ir  common fro n tie r , China had faced over 500 m ilita.ry incursions 
before counter-attacking, v.liile taking ca,re not to ha.rm the c iv il ia n  population. In 
doing’’ so, i t  had oonxormed to the p rincip les o f the Charter o f the United Ifetions 
and o f in ternationa.l huiaanitarian law.

5 3 . I t  was the same country x.hich, x;ith the use o f conventional xxeapons, and in 
particxilar o f anti-personnel devices a-cogiired from a super-Poxrer, had launched the 
attack on Democratic Kampuchea., cla.iming" mxracrous victim s and causing the f l ig h t  
o f hundreds o f thousands o f refugees.

54* Hr. PEREILIEV (Union o f Soviet S oc ia lis t Republics), speaJxing’ in  exercise o f 
the r igh t o f rep ly , saxLd, tha.t the Conference x/as the x-zitness o f China.'s attempt to 
eva.de resp on s ib ility  fo r  i t s  crimes a.gainst V iet Nam. Dy using ba.i’barous methods to 
te rro r iz e  the heroic people o f V iet ITa.m and crxxsli th e ir  desire to  struggle against 
inva.sion, China, had given proof o f i t s  hegemonic and expansionist ambitions, x-.diich 
i t  had. raised to the le v e l o f State 'policy. I t s  h is to ry  in  re la t ion  to i t s  
southern and. south-eastern neighbours shoxxed that i t  desired to  x/ag’e xfar ag’ainst 
small- a'nd medium-sized countries in  order to crush them and pla.ce them imder i t s  
yoke.

55. Hr. LE ХШ CIÍÜIIG (V iet Ham), speaking in exercise o f the righ t o f rep ly , said 
that he xnished to protest a.g'ainst the mendacious and slanderous a lleg ’ations made by 
the Chinese delegation against his country. He in v ited  the Chinese d.eleg’ation 
seriously to  examine i t s  conscience. I t  xzas in  fa.ct the expansionist aaid. hegemonic 
ambitions o f China, that x;e-re at the I’oot o f the g’enocide perpetrated in  Kampuchea 
before 7 January 1979? o f ^he xrars o f a.ggressio.n against V iet Ifem a.nd. o f the tlxreats 
and In terférence o f xfnicli the La,o Peop le 's  Democratic Republic and other neighbouring 
couarcries xrere victim s.

56. His delegation x/ished to  reaffirm  that the Peop le 's  Revolutionary Coamcil o f 
Kampuchea xzas the only authentic and, leg ’a l repx’esentative 01 Ka.mpuchea.

5 7 . Mr. LIAl-TG Y PiilT (China), speaking in  exercise o f the righ t o f rep ly , said that 
the Soviet Union, by i t s  attacks a.nd. sla.nder, had proved that i t  xras indeed the 
kingpin o f the regional hegemonic desi.gns to  xHiicli he had referred  in  his previous 
stateriient. -

The meeting rose at 1.55 P.m.


